
RIVERDALE CITY PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 
CIVIC CENTER - 4600 S. WEBER RIVER DR.  

_________________________________________TUESDAY – MAY 12, 2015 

6:00 p.m. –Work Session (City Council Conference Room)  
The purpose of the work session is to review maps, plans, paperwork, etc.  No motions or 
decisions will be considered during this session, which is open to the public. 

6:30 p.m. – Planning Commission Meeting (Council Chambers) 

A. Welcome & Roll Call 

B. Open Communications 
(This is an opportunity to address the Planning Commission regarding your 
concerns or ideas.  Please try to limit your comments to three minutes.) 

C. Presentations and Reports 

D. Consent Items 
1. Consideration of meeting minutes from:

April 14, 2015 Work Session 
  April 14, 2015 Planning Commission   

E. Action Items  
1. a. Public hearing to receive and consider public comment on a proposed  

Rezone request from A-1 to R-2, R-3 or R-4 for a parcel of land located at 
4829 S.1700 W.     

b. Consideration of a proposed Rezone request from A-1 to R-2, R-3 or R-4
for a parcel of land located at 4829 S.1700 W.
Petitioner: Cole Eskelson and Jason Bickley

F. Discretionary Items

G.  Adjournment 

 The public is invited to attend all Planning Commission meetings.
 In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons in need of special

accommodation should contact the City Recorder at 394-5541 x 1232.
 This agenda has been properly posted and a copy provided to local news media.



RIVERDALE CITY 
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA  

May 12, 2015 
 

AGENDA ITEM: D 
 
 
SUBJECT: Consideration of meeting minutes from:   

 April 14, 2015 Work Session 
   April 14, 2015 Planning Commission   

 
PETITIONER: City Recorder 
 
ACTION REQUESTED BY PETITIONER: Approve minutes 
 
INFORMATION: See attached minutes as follows:   

 

  April 14, 2015 Work Session 
 
 

    April 14, 2015 Planning Commission   
 
 
 

BACK TO AGENDA 
 
 



 

 

Administrative Offices 

4600 So. Weber River Drive 

Riverdale, Utah  84405 

 
 
Minutes of the Work Session of the Riverdale City Planning Commission held 
Tuesday, April 14, 2015 at 6:05 p.m. at the Riverdale Civic Center, 4600 South Weber 
River Drive. 
 
Members Present:        

Steve Hilton, Commissioner  
Kathy Eskelsen, Commissioner 
David Gailey, Commissioner 
Michael Roubinet, Commissioner 
Cody Hansen, Commissioner 

 
Member Excused: Blair Jones, Chairman  
 
Member Absent: Lori Fleming, Commissioner 
 
Others Present: Michael Eggett, Community Development Director; Ember 

Herrick, City Recorder and no members of the public.   
 
Vice Chairman Hilton welcomed the Planning Commission members to the work session 
stating for the record that all were in attendance except for Chairman Jones who is 
excused and Commissioner Fleming who is expected shortly.   
 
Vice Chairman Hilton asked for any changes or corrections to the previous meeting 
minutes and none were noted.   
 
Community Development Director Michael Eggett said the training document Utah 
Guiding Principles for Quality Growth describes the role of a commission set up by 
Utah’s Governor to balance natural resource preservation with commercial and 
residential growth interests.  He said the Planning Commission has a similar role tasked 
with protecting Riverdale’s natural resources while respecting individual property owner 
rights and giving them autonomy to make decisions about the development of their 
properties in a free market system as the community evolves.  Mr. Eggett said it is 
important for the Planning Commission to consider these same factors as well as housing 
for all income levels and he noted online resources available to help them make smart 
planning decisions.  He said the Governor’s Office of Economic Development (GOED) 
helps recruit businesses to Utah with a focus on economic development through job 
growth.   
 
Vice Chairman Hilton said the first action item on the agenda is a public hearing to 
consider a favorable recommendation of a final site plan proposal, subdivision request, 
and CUP for The Crossing at Mitchell Farms located at address 785 W. 4450 S.  Mr. 
Eggett said the petitioner Forest Creek Construction, LLC will have representatives 



 

 

present to answer any questions.  He reviewed staff reports and said utility lines are 
missing from the final site plan and a few other minor corrections like a lot number 
correction, and square footage discrepancy also need to be fixed, but nothing substantial 
that would prevent the proposal from receiving a favorable recommendation during 
tonight’s public meeting.  Mr. Eggett said he communicated Commissioner Eskelsen’s 
concern that fire trucks won’t be able to access the rear of these patio homes if fences are 
put in to Riverdale Fire Chief Roger Bodily who said as long as firefighters can get a 
hose around the back, vehicle access isn’t necessary.  Mr. Eggett explained the on-site 
retention pond system and said it is designed not to overflow water onto city streets 
except in a 100 year storm event.  Vice Chairman Hilton asked if the proposals have all 
been reviewed by legal counsel and Mr. Eggett said at this point only the Covenants, 
Conditions and Restrictions (CC&Rs) have been reviewed by City Attorney Steve 
Brooks.  Mr. Eggett said prior to tonight’s public hearing he has not received any 
comments in support of or opposition to this proposed PRUD.  No additional questions or 
comments were noted.   
 
Vice Chairman Hilton said the second action item is a public hearing to consider 
amending RCC 10-27 updating Riverdale’s Flood Damage Prevention ordinance between 
Riverdale City and the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA).  Mr. Eggett 
said these amendments are required so that home and business owners with property 
located within the floodplain in Riverdale will be able to continue qualifying for flood 
insurance.  He said the most substantial amendments are to the violators language in RCC 
10-27 and Vice Chairman Hilton noted that the penalties are recommended by federal 
guidance.  No additional questions or comments were noted.   
 
Vice Chairman Hilton asked for any discretionary items and none were noted.   
 
There being no further business, the Planning Commission adjourned at 6:24 p.m. 
 
Approved:  April 28, 2015             Attest:  
 
 
 
________________________             ________________________ 
Steve Hilton, Vice Chairman                           Ember Herrick, City Recorder  
 
 



 

 

 
 
Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Riverdale City Planning Commission held Tuesday, 
April 14, 2015 at 6:30 p.m. at the Riverdale Civic Center, 4600 South Weber River Drive. 
 
Members Present:       Steve Hilton, Commissioner  

Kathy Eskelsen, Commissioner 
David Gailey, Commissioner 
Michael Roubinet, Commissioner 
Cody Hansen, Commissioner 

 
Member Excused: Blair Jones, Chairman  
 
Member Absent: Lori Fleming, Commissioner 
 
Others Present: Michael Eggett, Community Development Director; Ember Herrick, City  

Recorder and four members of the public Ashley Andersen, Lorri 
Thurgood, Hugh Parke and Ron Oleson.   

 
A.   Welcome & Roll Call  
Vice Chairman Hilton welcomed everyone to the meeting and stated for the record all members 
of the Planning Commission are present except for Chairman Jones who is excused and 
Commissioners Fleming who is absent.   
 
B.   Open Communications  
Vice Chairman Hilton asked for any open communications and Ron Oleson said he lives on the 
South side of the West Bench of Riverdale and would like to address West Bench development 
because there is only one entrance into and out of his community.  Mr. Oleson said he would like 
city officials to consider opening Ritter Drive to traffic turning off of Freeway Park Drive and he 
said he daily observes drivers making illegal turns in violation of the turning restriction.  Vice 
Chairman Hilton thanked Mr. Oleson for his concern and said it will be communicated to the 
City Council through staff because they are the body that has authority over traffic restrictions on 
Ritter Drive.    
 
C.   Presentations and Reports  
Community Development Director Michael Eggett gave a brief update on the Community 
Development Report noting the grand opening of Golden Spike Harley-Davidson April 10 and 
11, 2015.  He said a home décor retailer out of Texas called At Home will move into the old 
Macy’s building by the summer of 2015.  Mr. Eggett said Lesley’s RV Storage located at the 
corner of 4400 S. and 700 W. is now a Ken Garff vehicle storage lot; he said the use hasn’t 
changed just the type of vehicles being stored in the lot.  Vice Chairman Hilton asked for any 
questions and none were noted.   
 
D.   Consent Items  
1.  Consideration of meeting minutes from:  

March 24, 2015 Work Session 
  March 24, 2015 Planning Commission   



 

Riverdale City Planning Commission                                                   2                                                                                   April 14, 2015  

Vice Chairman Hilton asked for any changes or corrections to the previous meeting minutes and 
none were noted.   
  Motion: Commissioner Roubinet moved to approve the consent items.  Commissioner 

Eskelsen seconded the motion.    
 
There was no discussion on the motion.   

Call the Question: The motion passed unanimously. 

E. Action Items  
  1.       a.  Public hearing to receive and consider public comment on  
   a proposed conditional use permit for a Planned Residential Unit  

Development at The Crossing at Mitchell Farms at address 785 W.  
4450 S. 

 
b. Consideration of a recommendation for final approval of a  

subdivision request The Crossing at Mitchell Farms at address 785  
W. 4450 S.  
 

     c.  Consideration of recommendation for approval of a proposed  
      conditional use permit for a Planned Residential Unit Development  
      at The Crossing at Mitchell Farms at address 785 W. 4450 S. 
 
Mr. Eggett said tonight’s public hearing was properly noticed in accordance with state law and 
Vice Chairman Hilton opened the public hearing where no public comment was received.   
 
 Motion: Commissioner Gailey moved to close the public hearing.  Commissioner 

Eskelsen seconded the motion.    

There was no discussion on the motion.   

Call the Question: The motion passed unanimously. 

 
Mr. Eggett said representatives from Forest Creek Construction Hugh Park and Lorri Thurgood 
are present tonight and he reviewed the updates to the final site plan for The Crossing at Mitchell 
Farms address 785 W. 4450 S.  He said no utility lines are noted on the final plan although they 
are referenced in the legend on the plan.  Mr. Park said he has been working with Questar Gas 
and Rocky Mountain Power but these utility companies won’t stipulate where the lines can be 
drawn until the final plat is approved by Planning Commission and City Council.   
 
Mr. Eggett said Commissioner Eskelsen’s concern that there won’t be enough clearance between 
the homes for emergency vehicles to access the rear in the event of a fire if fences are erected 
was communicated to Riverdale Fire Chief Roger Bodily.  According to Mr. Eggett, Chief 
Bodily said his crews can drag hoses and use hand tools to fight fires behind the proposed homes 
and there is no need for truck access in a fire.  He said Chief Bodily doesn’t see any safety 
concerns for firefighters with fences being erected between the properties.  Commissioner Gailey 
said he is impressed with staff’s presentation and the breadth of information provided to the 
Planning Commission and public in the meeting packet so there aren’t a lot of unresolved 
problems to discuss by the time a proposal in under final review.  Commissioner Gailey said he 
feels confident in approving this final subdivision request and Ms. Thurgood credited Mr. 



 

Riverdale City Planning Commission                                                   3                                                                                   April 14, 2015  

Eggett’s attention to detail and ability to balance the City’s code compliance requirements with 
the property developer’s interests.  Commissioner Gailey asked what other developments Forest 
Creek Construction has completed so that he can get a feel for how the Mitchell Farms PRUD 
will look and Ms. Thurgood said South Pointe Condominiums in South Ogden and several 
developments in Davis County, including one adjacent to a golf course.   
 
Mr. Eggett said the applicant has met all of the city’s code requirements and staff has provided 
information supporting a favorable approval of this planned residential unit development. 
 

Motion: Commissioner Hansen moved to forward a favorable recommendation to  
the City Council for final approval of a subdivision request for The  
Crossing at Mitchell Farms at address 785 W. 4450 S.  Seconded by  
Commissioner Gailey.  

 
There was no discussion on the motion.   

 

Call the Question: The motion passed unanimously. 

 
Vice Chairman Hilton said the second action item is consideration of a recommendation for final 
approval of a subdivision request for The Crossing at Mitchell Farms at address 785 W. 4450 S. 
 
Mr. Eggett said the proposed PRUD complies with all Title 10 requirements including signage 
regulations and now that the public hearing and notice have been satisfied the Planning 
Commission can consider a Conditional Use Permit overlay request.  According to Mr. Eggett, 
this development is ideal for senior housing in close proximity to the Riverdale’s Senior Center 
and will be a good transition between the residential and commercial zones.   
 
   Motion: Commissioner Hansen moved to forward a favorable recommendation to  
      the City Council for approval of a proposed conditional use permit for a  
      Planned Residential Unit Development at The Crossing at Mitchell Farms  
      at address 785 W. 4450 S.  Commissioner Roubinet seconded the motion.   
 
There was no discussion on the motion.   
 

Call the Question: The motion passed unanimously. 

 

2. Public hearing to receive and consider public comment on proposed  
Ordinance 865 a flood plain ordinance with FEMA 10-27 

 
Mr. Eggett said tonight’s public hearing was properly noticed in accordance with state law and 
Vice Chairman Hilton opened the public hearing where no public comment was received.   
 
 Motion: Commissioner Eskelsen moved to close the public hearing.  Commissioner 

Gailey seconded the motion.    

 



 

Riverdale City Planning Commission                                                   4                                                                                   April 14, 2015  

There was no discussion on the motion.  

  

Call the Question: The motion passed unanimously. 

 
Mr. Eggett said he has worked closely with Utah Floodplain Manager John Crofts to amend 
Riverdale City Code (RCC) 10-27 Flood Damage Prevention to protect the interests of property 
owners that live in or own commercial businesses located in Riverdale’s floodplain.  He said the 
Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) has reviewed the proposed changes and 
recommends approval and if the Planning Commission doesn’t have any changes he would be in 
support of a favorable recommendation to the Council for their consideration at their April 21, 
2015 meeting.  Commissioner Roubinet asked when RCC 10-27 was last updated and Mr. Eggett 
said August 2008.  Commissioner Gailey asked how extensive the amendments are and Mr. 
Eggett said almost every paragraph has been amended slightly with some significant 
modifications to the penalty language.   
 
   Motion: Commissioner Roubinet moved to forward a favorable recommendation to  
   the City Council for approval of proposed Ordinance 865 amending RCC  

10-27 a flood plain ordinance with FEMA.  Commissioner Gailey 
seconded the motion.   

 
There was no discussion on the motion.   
 

Call the Question: The motion passed unanimously. 

   
F.   Discretionary Items 

Vice Chairman Hilton asked for any discretionary items and none were noted.   

G. Adjournment 

Motion: There being no further business to come before the Planning Commission, 
Commissioner Gailey moved to adjourn the meeting.  Commissioner Eskelsen 
seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously.  The meeting adjourned at 
6:49 p.m.   

 
Approved:  April 28, 2015                       Attest:  
 
 
 
________________________________                                      __________________________  
Steve Hilton, Vice Chairman                       Ember Herrick, City Recorder  



RIVERDALE CITY 
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA  

May 12, 2015 

AGENDA ITEM: E1 

SUBJECT: 1.   a. Public hearing to receive and consider public comment on a proposed  
Rezone request from A-1 to R-2, R-3 or R-4 for a parcel of land located at 4829 S.1700 W.   

b. Consideration of a proposed Rezone request from A-1 to R-2, R-3 or R-4
for a parcel of land located at 4829 S.1700 W.

PETITIONER: Cole Eskelson and Jason Bickley

INFORMATION: 

Exec Summ Rezone Request - PlanComm [20150512] 

Notice of Public Hearing and Proof of Publication   

Rezone Request Application 

Affected Entities Notice Listing 

Certification of Sign Placement 

Letter from UDOT 

Rezone Request Maps 

BACK TO AGENDA 




























































